
 
1 

 

 

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK 
 

KING'S LYNN AREA CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes from the Meeting of the King's Lynn Area Consultative Committee 
held on Thursday, 16th January, 2020 at 6.00 pm in the Town Hall, Saturday 

Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ 
 

PRESENT: Councillor A Tyler (Chair)  
Councillors Miss L Bambridge, F Bone, J Collop, S Collop, A Dickinson, 
G Howman, C Hudson, B Jones, A Kemp, J Lowe, J Rust, A Tyler and 

M Wilkinson 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Councillor Richard Blunt. 
 
The Chair welcomed John Greenhalgh to the meeting, who was the 
new Management Team representative replacing Stuart Ashworth. 
 
The Chair asked for the Committee’s thanks to be passed onto Stuart 
for all his support he gave to the Committee over the years. 
 

2   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 2019 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There was none. 
 

4   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

There was none. 
 

5   MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34  
 

There were no Members present pursuant to Standing Order 34. 
 

6   CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE (IF ANY)  
 

There was no Chair’s correspondence to report. 
 

7   BUS SHELTER POLICY FOR THE UNPARISHED AREA OF KING'S 
LYNN  



 
2 

 

 

 

The Chair welcomed Vanessa Dunmall and Peter Gray to the meeting 
to present the bus shelter policy and for the unparished area of King’s 
Lynn. 
 
Vanessa gave Councillor Richard Blunt’s apologies for the meeting.  
Councillor Blunt was supportive of the document and policy and 
welcomed comments from the Committee.  He would meet with officers 
following the meeting to take into account the comments made by the 
Committee, prior to it being considered by Cabinet. 
 
The Committee considered the report and draft policy and made the 
following comments: 
 
Councillor Kemp made reference to a particular bus shelter at West 
Lynn where its ownership was unknown.   Councillor Kemp suggested 
that the Borough Council should take on its ownership.   
 
It was also suggested that an environmental an environmental section 
could be added into the policy. 
 
It was agreed that options should be explored on how to establish 
whether there were other ‘unknown’ bus shelters in the unparished 
area and also establish the process for taking ownership of existing 
shelters that are of unknown ownership. 
 
In response to a comment from Councillor Mrs Collop, it was agreed to 
send the Committee a list of the bus shelters within the King’s Lynn 
area.   
 
With regards to the transfer of bus shelters to South Wootton Parish 
Council, it was explained that this was in the process of taking place. 
 
Reference was made to a bus shelter on the hospital site, and it was 
explained that it was owned by a bus company and had not been 
included on the list of Borough Council owned bus shelters.  It was 
suggested that the bus shelter should stay with the hospital as it was 
within their site. 
 
Officers explained that a bus shelter could only be erected where there 
was an existing bus stop. 
 
Councillor Bambridge made reference to bus shelters in Holland which 
had green roofs.  It was explained that although this could be a good 
idea in principle, it would add to the installation and maintenance costs.  
The result of that could be fed into the new environmental section of 
the policy. 
 



 
3 

 

 

Councillor Howman referred to new installations of bus shelters and 
asked if someone oversaw this process, as he knew of one which had 
been put in the wrong way round. 
 
Councillor Kemp explained that bus shelters were a key part of the 
public transport network and would like them to be mentioned in the KL 
Transport Study.  
 
Officers agreed to carry out some more work and feedback to the 
Committee at a future meeting. 
 
The Chair thanked Vanessa and Peter for attending the meeting. 
 
AGREED: That additional work be carried out on the policy and 
presented back to the Committee for comments prior to its 
consideration by Cabinet. 
 

8   SPECIAL EXPENSES MONITORING REPORT - TO FOLLOW  
 

The Assistant Director apologised for the short notice in publishing the 
report. 
 
Councillor Dickinson suggested that it would be helpful for the 
Committee for an expanded list of 1.4 in the report. 
 
With regards to the £1,000 marketing budget which had been set aside 
as detailed in Section 2 of the report, he suggested that the money 
could be spent on the play area in the Friars and Forward Day Centre. 
 
Councillor Hudson stated that she would be interested to know more 
about the spending of nearly £340,000 on open spaces. 
 
Councillor Kemp also queried the number and location of closed 
churchyards.  The Assistant Director explained that this information 
could be obtained, and if the Committee had any specific queries to 
email him. 
 
AGREED: That the report be noted, and a further report containing 
more detailed information be presented to the meeting. 
 

9   GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE COUNCIL  
 

The Chair welcomed Councillors Devereux and Moriarty and Terry 
Huggins to the meeting.   
 
Councillor Devereux introduced the item and explained the work which 
had been carried out so far.  A Task Group had been set up to look at 
the Governance arrangements which lead to a workshop in November, 
organised by Terry Huggins, for all Councillors.   
 



 
4 

 

 

The Committee made the following comments: 
 
Councillor Kemp stated that she would like to see KLACC with its own 
budget to enable the Committee to be more proactive.  The Committee 
was supposed to function as a Parish Council for King’s Lynn but 
doesn’t have a budget.  The status of the Committee needed to be 
upgraded. 
 
Councillor John Collop responded that it had been a problem that the 
Committee was just a Consultative Committee.  The Committee always 
had to request funding from Cabinet as it did not have its own budget.  
It was frustrating that the Committee could not spend its own money. 
 
Cllr Howman felt that the Committee’s Terms of Reference needed to 
be revised, and should be given the same power as a Parish Council.  
The Committee needed to be reviewed, modernised and restructured. 
 
Councillor Kemp suggested that the Committee needed to be forward 
thinking and agreed that the structure did need improving.  The area 
would be benefit if the Committee had a capital budget, for example 
health infrastructure.  She made reference to the Millennium 
Agreement at NORA. 
 
Councillor Jo Rust understood the issues that had been raised relating 
to KLACC, but understood that this was governance arrangements 
overall and was wider than just this Committee.  She added that there 
was no longer an overwhelming majority and now was the opportunity 
to consider alternative governance arrangements. 
 
Terry Huggins asked the Committee to outline the reasons why they 
considered that things were not working. 
 
Councillor Howman added that there was not an adequate 
representation on Cabinet and considered that a Councillor from King’s 
Lynn should be on it.  KLACC was supposed to represent people but 
had no delegated powers or budget. 
 
Councillor Bone stated that he wanted to help people in his ward.  With 
a Committee system he felt that it would be more individual that party 
driven.  There was now more debate at full Council meetings. 
 
Councillor Jones explained that he was a new member in May, and did 
not know how the two systems would work.  He considered that 
Cabinet should have a more proportionate representation. 
 
Terry Huggins explained that the change to a Committee system would 
have a big impact.  Some local authorities had reintroduced a 
Committee system but this was different from a traditional committee 
system. 
 



 
5 

 

 

The Chair added that some frustrations he was aware of related to 
matters from full Council being referred to Cabinet rather than debated 
at full Council. 
Councillor Mrs Wilkinson reminded the Committee that when Labour 
was in control and a Committee system was used previously, there 
were opposition Chairs.  She considered that there should be more 
workable arrangements. 
 
Terry Huggins explained that nothing had been decided, work to date 
had focused on what needed to be fixed.  He added that there was no 
single model and it was about designing what worked best for this 
Council.    
 
The Chair added that the Mayor was normally decided by the ruling 
group.  Many people felt that it should be decided on the length of 
service.  Another issue related to outside bodies and the fact that 
people should be appointed on expertise and not what political party 
they were from. 
 
Councillor Moriarty explained it was in 2002 when Labour brought in 
the Cabinet system. 
 
Councillor Hudson considered that equal representation was needed 
from different groups.  All decisions should go to full Council.  Minutes 
from meetings needed to be more detailed and that she did not have 
enough time to go to all the Panel meetings. 
 
Councillor Moriarty explained that in last few years, Council made the 
decision to change the way of taking minutes.  Recording of meetings 
was being considered and could come forward. 
 
Councillor Howman considered that the Corporate Performance Panel 
was a toothless entity.  The previous Cabinet Scrutiny Committee was 
chaired by the opposition and worked well.  There needed to be 
effective scrutiny. 
 
Councillor Kemp explained that she served under a Committee system 
at County and it was fairer and included a greater mix of people.  She 
welcomed audio recording and live streaming of meetings. 
 
Councillor Tyler asked whether a local political party had to follow a 
national party. 
 
Councillor Bambridge referred to the last set of E&C minutes and 
added that people did get comments recorded.  The onus was on 
Councillors to look at agendas and go along to meetings.  Councillors 
could ask for something to be recorded, if they wished. 
 
Terry Huggins thanked the Committee for their comments.  He invited 
the Committee to send an email with further points and encouraged 



 
6 

 

 

Members to explain why something was not working and offer a 
solution. 
 
Councillor Moriarty suggested that the Committee looked at minutes 
from the Task Group published on mod.gov for background and 
context. 
 
Councillor Devereux thanked the Committee for their comments. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillors Devereux, Moriarty and Terry Huggins 
for attending the meeting. 
 

10   COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME AND CABINET'S FORWARD 
DECISION LIST  
 

The Chair reminded the Committee that they could forward any ideas 
for potential work programme items to him, the Vice-Chair and 
Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Councillor Kemp asked whether an item on Tackling Rogue Landlords 
in King’s Lynn could be a future agenda item.  The Assistant Director 
advised that this now fell within his remit and he would arrange for the 
Committee to receive a presentation. 
 

11   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

The next meeting of the Committee was scheduled for Thursday 19 
March 2020 at 6pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.53 pm 
 

 


